
                              Ad Hoc Committee Meeting – Claremont Amtrak Stop 
                  July 30, 2014  
                     Page 1 
 
 
Madam Chair Lovett called the meeting to order at 3:05 pm. 
 
Members of the Committee present were: 
 
Ward I Councilor Carolyn Towle 
Ward II Councilor Charlene Lovett 
At Large Councilor James Reed 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Towle and seconded by Ms. Lovett to accept Mr. Reed to take minutes for 
the meeting. 
 
Voice vote: motion carried 3-0. 
 
Ms Lovett stated that applications of people who are interested in joining the committee need to be 
presented to the City Council for approval on August 13th. 
 
Ms. Lovett then asked how many members should comprise the committee? 
 
Ms. Towle stated six to eight people Ms.Lovett stated with an even number there is no tie breaker. Ms. 
Towle then stated seven people. All councilors agreed that an odd number would be best. 
 
Opened up for public comment: 
 
Bernie Folta stated there needs to be residents of Claremont that join the committee. We as a committee 
realized that. 
 
A motion was made by Ms.Towle and seconded by Mr .Reed to make the ad hoc committee for the 
Claremont Amtrak stop a seven member committee. 
 
Voice vote: motion carried 3-0. 
 
Ms. Lovett read a suggested mission statement as follows: 
 
Mission Statement:  Develop a plan to improve the Claremont Amtrak Stop (physical location and 
website) in order to increase ridership, promote economic development and support tourism in the 
region. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 



     
       July 30, 2014 
          page 2 
 
All Members agreed on the Mission Statement that was read by Ms. Lovett. 
 
Ms. Lovett asked us to refer to handouts that she provided for the meeting. 
 
Ms. Lovett stated there is a stop at White River Junction that also serves Lebanon-Hanover NH. The 
Downeaster has stops in Dover, Durham and Exeter NH , with Thruway Bus connections in other NH 
communities. 
 
Ms. Lovett stated that she contacted Mr. William Hollister who is currently Amtrak’s Government 
Services Representative for NH.  Prior to this position he was in charge of all Amtrak stations from 
Maine to Maryland.   
 
Ms. Lovett talked with Mr. William Hollister about a model of success.  He responded, “The research 
and data show that the best stations are in towns that take ownership and interest  in promoting and 
caring for their station.” Many of these towns incorporate volunteer programs to achieve this. 
 
Ms. Lovett then talked about our current situation.  The train stop consists of a partially protected cover 
that over hangs approximately three feet, two benches, platform light added with two Amtrak signs 
with a 1-800 number as well. 
 
There was additional lighting put in by Lambert's.  Both the depot building and the parking lot are 
owned by Mr. Lambert.  There is a pile of debris on one side of the track coming into Claremont.  
Removal of that debris needs to be researched. 
 
The Amtrak website for the Claremont Stop is in need of attention.  Currently, “Things to Do” lists 3 
items: North Country Smoke House (with possibly incorrect photos), Holy Resurrection Orthodox 
Church and Maple Lanes Bowling.  Reviews for these sites are fairly current.  There are 41 restaurants 
listed under “Places to Eat.” 
 
Another thing that will need to be addressed is snow removal and the upkeep of it. It is better than 
before as someone certified to clear tracks/platform has been contracted.  However, this is not always 
adequate for passengers arriving/departing twice a day. Employees at Claremont Cycle Shop have 
cleared the snow in the past when possible. 
  
The next document discussed was the ridership data.  Ridership data is based on fiscal year beginning 
October 1st and ending on September 30th.  Each year more people are getting off in Claremont than 
getting on.  The attached document pertaining to ridership data spans from FY06 through FY13. 
Overall increase in ridership in 8 years – 684 or 48% increase. 
 
Signs are needed to inform passengers where the stop is.  Amtrak offers, free-of-charge, both 
Trailblazer signs and Community signs. The sign that was previously at Drapers corner was removed 
prior to reconstruction of the site.  Ms. Lovett has requested that an agenda item be added to the August 
13th agenda for signage approval.  Approval will allow the city to install Trailblazer signs (directional 
signs with universal train symbol) throughout the city as needed, as well as the Community signs 
(depicting Claremont as an Amtrak community) along the main arteries into the city. 



                                              Ad Hoc Committee Meeting 
        July 30, 2014 
                      page 3 
 
 
Opened up for public comment: 
 
Bernie Folta reviewed “The Vermonter” list of stops.  He commented the advantage that Windsor VT 
has is their stop is close to downtown, as well as White River Junction and Montpelier which are two 
miles away.  Claremont’s stop is further away from the city center, 
 
Raymond Gagnon spoke about Senator Leahy and his efforts regarding the high speed train to Montreal.  
Customs screening would be conducted on the train. 
 
Mr. Lovett asked for input or questions or comments from members: 
 
Ms. Towle stated she was happy to hear the information provided before us.  She thanked Ms. Lovett 
for her outline and her time she put into the research. Ms Towle also was interested in hearing about 
volunteers to help with various projects that could enhance our Amtrak stop. 
 
Ms. Lovett advised us to do prep work at home.  Research needs to be done prior to meetings in order 
to keep them efficient and within an hour.  She recommends doing on-site visits in order to get 
individual perspectives on what is needed at the stop.  We need to look at both the short term and long 
term when considering how to install/upgrade services and amenities. 
 
Ms. Towle stated volunteerism (i.e.Garden Club) will be essential in achieving our goals. 
 
Ms. Lovett has concerns coming into the winter season which will need to be addressed.  For example, 
when the 1759 train arrives it is dark and there is no one around as the bike shop is closed, with the 
exception of Friday evenings. We need to address this and snow removal before winter arrives. 
 
Opened up for public comment: 
 
Bernie Folta stated that the Visitors Center is closed on Saturday and Sundays.  Perhaps volunteers 
would be available to open this on the weekend. 
 
Ms. Lovett stated this is a great opportunity to combine both of these ideas to promote tourism of the 
area.   
  
Raymond Gagnon suggested that residents/businesses in the vicinity of the train stop be asked to 
become committee members as they could offer a unique perspective of the site.  Also, increased 
ridership might provide an opportunity for freight service.  The cost of moving freight via rail is often 
cheaper. 
 
Ms. Lovett asked Mr. Gagnon if he could get the facts with regard to cost savings for freight service. 
 
 
 
      



                                               Ad Hoc Committee Meeting 
       July 30, 2014 
            page 4 
 
Ms. Lovett also said this is an opportunity to make Claremont and the surrounding region a destination 
point for recreation/tourism (i.e. route 12 kayak rentals, destination packages).  For example, bicyclists 
could load their bikes on the train and get off  in Claremont and ride trails in Moody Park (once 
reestablished)  and bike over to Ascutney for more advanced trails. 
                      
Opened up for public comment: 
 
Patrick Ogrady, Valley News, stated the former Ascutney Mountain Ski area may be converted to an 
advanced mountain biking park.  He stated he had written an article about possible plans for the former 
ski area.  
 
Marty Davis stated we should look into shuttle service to Saint Gaudens and other destinations. 
 
Ms. Lovett recommended that we get Chamber of Commerce representation on the committee. 
 
Opened for public comment: 
 
Bernie Folta asked about the possibility of the local travel agency, Wheelock Travel, putting together a 
brochure package to feature and market our area for travel. 
 
Patrick Ogrady had two points; Have there been issues (i.e. transportation, facilities, food, etc) for 
people once they have arrived in Claremont?  Second, have a survey done at the stop to identify what is 
really important to them. 
 
Ms. Lovett said excellent points.  She knows of one instance in which someone walked to Common 
Man.  John Lambert and bike shop employees have offered arriving passengers rides to destination 
points.  One lady was released from a medical facility, and needed assistance in getting to a relative’s 
house.  People have asked bike shop personnel for rides, coffee, food, bathroom facilities and 
information. 
 
Open for public comment: 
 
Raymond Gagnon stated Mr. Lambert is a great guy to assist these folks.  Perhaps, bike rentals could be 
a future option. 
 
Bernie Folta suggested that a survey could also be conducted at the Visitors Center to find out what 
people want there as well.  
 
Ms. Lovett stated we need to establish a report for the August 27th to give to the City Council. We need 
to meet on a weekly basis that will give us four weeks before the City Council meeting. What day and 
time is good for all of us? 
 
 
 
 



                            Ad Hoc Committee Meeting 
       July 30, 2014 
            Page 5 
 
Mr .Reed stated after 5:00pm as he works still then. 
 
Ms. Towle  stated she was open.  She thought Tuesday would be better. 
 
Ms. Lovett stated  Thursdays won’t work for her due to the Farmers Market. 
 
The committee determined Tuesday evening at 6 pm at City Council Chambers.  Dates are  8/5, 8/12, 
8/19, 8/26. 
 
We agreed as a committee that Ms. Lovett would contact Sarah Wheelock, as well as Melissa  
Richmond for public input to the committee’s efforts. 
 
There was discussion of finding creative ways to funds efforts without tax payer money. There are local 
businesses such as LaValleys and the students at the SRVRTC who might want to get involved in 
upgrading amenities/services at the train stop. 
 
There was talk about the rail spur at LaValleys. 
 
Ms. Towle made a motion and Mr. Reed seconded it to adjourn the meeting. 
 
Voice vote: 3-0 motion passes. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 4:10pm 
 
Respectfully Submitted , 
James P. Reed Jr. 
 
             
 
 
 
 
 
  


